
Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session.

Please ask for:
Gurdip Paddan

* Reporting to Cabinet

25 September 2018

Dear Councillor

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL to be held on Thursday 4 October 2018 at 
7.30pm in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, 
Herts, AL8 6AE.

Yours faithfully

Corporate Director
Public Protection, Planning and Governance

A G E N D A
PART 1

1.  SUBSTITUTIONS 

To note any substitution of Committee Members in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rules 19 – 22.

2.  APOLOGIES 

3.  MINUTES 

To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 6 September 
2018 (previously circulated). 

Public Document Pack



4.  NOTIFICATION OR URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 9 

5.  DECLARATION OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS 

To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on this Agenda.

6.  PUBLIC QUESTION TIME AND PETITIONS 

Up to fifteen minutes will be made available for questions from members of the 
public on issues relating to the work of the Committee and to receive any petitions.

7.  ST ALBANS CITY AND DISTRICT LOCAL PLAN PUBLICATION DRAFT 
CONSULTATION DOCUMENT, SEPTEMBER 2018 (Pages 5 - 14)

Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) on 
the Council’s response to the St Albans City and District Local Plan Publication 
consultation document.

8.  INTRODUCTION OF VERGE PROTECTION ORDER IN VARIOUS ROADS, 
HANDSIDE WARD, WELWYN GARDEN CITY (Pages 15 - 92)

Report of the Corporate Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural Services) 
on the proposals for the creation of a verge protection order in various roads in the 
Handside Ward of Welwyn Garden City.

9.  SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION 

10.  EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

The Panel is asked to resolve:

That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be now excluded from the meeting for item 11 (if any) on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt information as defined 
in Section 100A(3) and Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the said Act (as amended). 

In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information. 



PART II

11.  ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF A CONFIDENTIAL OR EXEMPT NATURE AT THE 
DISCRETION OF THE CHAIRMAN 

Circulation: Councillors S.Boulton (Chairman)
M.Perkins (Vice-Chairman)
A.Chesterman
J.Cragg
C.Gillett
S.Glick

G.Hayes
S.Kasumu
A Rohale
P.Shah
P.Zukowskyj

Co-opted Members:-
Tenants’ Panel Representatives

R.Read

Corporate Management Team
Press and Public (except Part II Items)

If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Gurdip 
Paddan, Governance Services on 01707 357349 or email – 
democracy@welhat.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

Part I
Main author: Mohammed Azram 
Executive Member: Mandy Perkins
All Wards

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL – 04 OCTOBER 2018
REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING AND 
GOVERNANCE) 

ST ALBANS CITY AND DISTRICT LOCAL PLAN PUBLICATION DRAFT 
CONSULTATION DOCUMENT, SEPTEMBER 2018 

SUMMARY

1.1 St Albans District and City Council (SADC) published their Local Plan Publication 
Document 20181 for consultation between 4th September and 17th October 2018. 
Once adopted, this Plan will cover the period between 2020 to 2036 and will replace 
the policies contained within its existing District Local Plan (adopted in 1994) that 
covered the period between 1981- 1996. 

1.2 As the plan is at the formal Regulation 19 stage the Council’s response will need to 
focus on any soundness or cross boundary strategic issues relating to the Duty to 
Cooperate.

1.3 The NPPF Revision was published in July 2018 and will apply as SADC are intending 
to submit their plan for examination, after 24th January 2019 (Para 214)2. This 
requires strategic plan-making authorities to collaborate, to identify and address 
strategic matters that cross administrative boundaries.

1.4 The main body of the report highlights the key issues for this Council whilst the 
proposed Council’s response has been included in Appendix A to this report.

2. Recommendation(s)

2.1 That the Panel agrees to the proposed response to the SADC Local Publication 
consultation document (2018) as set out in Appendix 1 of this report and indicate 
any further issues that Members wish to see included in this Council’s response.

2.2 That the Head of Planning be given delegated authority to agree the final response 
to the consultation with the Leader of the Council as the Executive Member for 
Planning Policy.

3. Background

3.1 SADC previously submitted an earlier version of their Strategic Local Plan (2016for 
examination in 2016. However, the Inspector concluded that this failed to 
demonstrate compliance with the legal duty to cooperate and should be withdrawn 

1 Otherwise referred to in this report as SADC Local Plan (2018)
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



- 2 -

or not adopted, as they failed to identify, address and cooperate in regards to cross 
boundary priorities. SADC lost a judicial review challenging this decision in 2017.  

3.2 WHBC responded to the SADC Local Plan consultation in February 2016 and the 
issues raised were; (1) A cross boundary housing market relationship exists between 
the two authorities and the housing target is failing to meet the full housing needs (2) 
The Gypsy and Traveller allocations were failing to meet identified needs.(3) Failure 
to include an employment land/jobs target and whether they will be fully met.(4) 
Unclear whether additional retail was proposed at Colney Fields Retail Centre and its 
impacts.(5 failed to undertake transport modelling to assess, mitigate any highway 
impacts of growth (6) The agreement for Ellenbrook County Park may need amending  

3.3 , The Secretary of State has written to SADC earlier this year warning them that they 
may lose their plan making powers, unless they meet key deadlines.  Their 
programme requires SADC to submit their Local Plan (2018) for an independent 
examination by March 2019 and adopt it by 2020. Following this, they are intending 
to produce Masterplans for the broad locations of growth. 

3.4 This consultation is seeking views on whether their Plan meets the Tests of 
Soundness and whether the content of the plan, or the procedures for producing it, 
meet the legal requirements, including the Duty to Cooperate (DTC). 

3.5 Strategic policy making authorities are now required to prepare and maintain 
statement of common ground, to demonstrate effective and ongoing joint working. 
This helps determine where additional infrastructure is necessary, and whether 
development needs that cannot be met wholly within a particular plan area could be 
met elsewhere (Para 27, NPPF, 2018). 

Explanation

3.6 The SADC Local Plan (2017) includes strategic policies to set out the broad locations 
for growth, in terms of the scale, type and locations. It proposes a limited number of 
allocations such as; mixed use opportunity areas, special employment locations; 
small housing sites with permission for between 1-58 (but predominately 1-4) 
dwellings, however the location of these are not shown on the Policies Map. In 
addition, development management policies are proposed to; protect, enhance the 
built and natural environment; address climate change, deliver affordable housing 
and infrastructure.

3.7 The Plan has not identified any local or cross boundary issues/constraints that it is 
seeking to address. No supporting text has been included to justify the policies and 
a number of updates to the evidence base have yet to be completed. This has made 
difficult to assess the impact on Welwyn Hatfield and whether or not there are any 
Duty to Cooperate issues. It is proposed that a number of holding objections are 
made to protect this Council’s position with a view to these being addressed through 
a Memorandum of Understanding or Statement of Common Ground.

3.8 The key parts of the SADC Local Plan development strategy are outlined below: 

(1) Homes: A target of 14,608 dwellings is to be delivered at 11 broad locations as 
opposed to 4 strategic locations in their previous plan, largely through the release of 
Green Belt sites. This includes the Park Street Garden Village (2,300 dwellings) and 
its supporting infrastructure (e.g. railway station). The proposed broad locations that 
fall within the Welwyn Hatfield defined housing market area (HMA) are (1) East of 

Page 6



- 3 -

St Albans: Expected to deliver 1,250 dwellings; and (2) West of London Colney: 
Expected to deliver 440 dwellings.

(2) Jobs: A broad location to the east of Hemel Hempstead is expected to provide 
55 hectares (10,000 jobs) of employment land. It promotes the significant 
development and redevelopment of the special employment locations in the Green 
Belt 

(4) Mixed use opportunity areas (MUOA): Promotes the development and 
redevelopment of the MOUA for residential, retail or service uses, at 3 locations 
including Conley Field Retail Centre (Ridge View). 

(5) Infrastructure: The proposed broad location growth policies outline the 
supporting infrastructure to be provided within these locations. The infrastructure 
Delivery Schedule provides an overview. A revised Infrastructure Delivery Plan has 
not been published 

3.9 The key issues for Welwyn Hatfield are addressed below.

The extent to which St Albans is meeting its housing needs

3.10 The SADC Local Plan (2018) is proposing to include a housing target of 14,608 
dwellings (or 913 dwellings per annum or dpa) between 2020-2036. This was 
derived from the Government’s Planning for the Right Homes in the Right Places 
consultation document (September 2017) that included indicative housing need 
figures for local councils, to illustrate how the proposed standard methodology may 
apply. Since this, the NPPF revision (2018) and planning practice guidance have 
been published that requires Local Plans (submitted after 24/01/19) to apply the 
standard methodology to derive their housing need requirements. This replaces the 
old need figures, derived from the strategic housing market assessment (SHMA) It 
is estimated that the SADC housing need figure should be 599 dpa (using the 
standard methodology published September 2018).    

3.11 The start date of the Plan is 2020 but it would appear that no consideration has 
been to under delivery between now and the start date of the Plan or whether they 
should be meeting any unmet needs of the neighbouring authorities as is required 
by the NPPF. 

3.12 The proposed response welcomes the acknowledgment that there is a cross 
boundary relationship with SADC and the inclusion of a higher target within their 
Plan. However, as the Plan will be submitted for examination after January 2019 the 
Plan the housing requirement will need to be based on the government’s standard 
methodology which will not be confirmed until November this year. It is therefore not 
possible to be certain on the extent to which the housing requirement is meeting its 
needs and whether or not it could meet some of its unmet needs of neighbouring 
authorities and therefore whether it is sound.

Potential supply of homes within the defined WHBC HMA 

3.13 The SADC Local Plan (2018) proposed broad locations have the potential to deliver 
1,690 dwellings within the parts of St Albans which fall within the tightly defined 
WHBC HMA. The Plan also proposes allocating a significant number of small sites 
granted permission for residential development with a potential to deliver 235 
dwellings but they are not shown on the Policies Map.  It is not possible to conclude 
whether the need within this part of the defined housing market area has been met 

Page 7



- 4 -

as the overall need for dwellings within St Albans is not unknown and the response 
will need to refer this potentially being an issue which will need to be considered as 
part of duty to cooperate discussions.

Policy S6 v) – East of St Albans Broad location    

3.14 Policy S6 allocates the above broad location for 1,250 dwellings (at net density of 
40dph) and the supporting infrastructure (including a 2 form entry primary school 
and an 8 form entry secondary school). The policy also seeks investment in the 
further education facilities at Oaklands College and a new neighbourhood centre. 

Policy S6 ix) – West of London Colney Broad location    

3.15 This is a new broad location which has been allocated for 440 dwellings and also lies 
within the Welwyn Hatfield HMA. It will also be required to provide for a new primary 
and secondary school.

Employment needs and whether these will be met in full 

3.16 The WHBC Economic Study (2015) indicates SADC lies within its functional 
economic market area (FEMA) due to the economic linkages. Whilst SADC’s 
evidence indicates it falls within the Luton Travel to work area that excludes WHBC. 

3.17 SADC Local Plan has not included a target for the number of jobs or floorspace. 
Policy S5 is seeking to deliver economic growth within three sites, within the Enviro-
Tech Enterprise Zone. This comprised of 55 hectares (17 hectares of B1 office and 
38 hectares logistic/ mixed industrial) and 10,000 jobs within the East of Hemel 
Hempstead Broad location, the significant redevelopment/development of two special 
employment locations (SEL) within the Green Belt (BRE Bricket Wood and 
Rothamsted Research, Harpenden. Further, Policy L16: Mixed use opportunity 
(MUOA) area seeks to promote the redevelopment/development of 3 areas. But it 
has failed to specify the potential scale of SEL and MUOA.

3.18 The evidence base is in the process of being updated and will be published in 
February 2019 so it is not possible to determine to what extent forecast levels of 
growth are being met. 

Policy L5: Small Scale Development in the Green Belt Settlements

3.19 Policy L5 indicates small scale development and redevelopment for residential, 
community and business uses will be permitted, within a number of Green Belt 
settlements that are located within the sensitive gap between St Albans and Hatfield. 
This is providing it is in line with the settlement hierarchy and a criteria such as the 
site is; previously developed land, for 10 dwellings or equivalent and infill location and 
does not impact the character of settlements. 

3.20 Our proposed response will suggest that Policy L5 should be modified to allow for the 
impact on the openness of the Green Belt to be added as an additional criterion. This 
will allow the status of village as a washed over settlement and their contribution to 
the openness of the Green Belt is not compromised.    

Policy L7: Gypsy, Travellers and Travelling Show People 

3.21 SADC undertook a Gypsy and Traveller (G & T) accommodation needs assessment 
(GTANA) 2015. This identified a net need to provide 79 pitches by 2031, 47 of which 
are need by 2019. The SADC Annual Monitoring Report (2017) indicated that the 

Page 8



- 5 -

GTANA will be updated to reflect the revised G & T definition. It is understood that an 
updated study will be published in October so it is not possible d to establish the 
extent the Plan is meeting the forecast need.

3.22 It is considered that this Council should welcome the inclusion of additional broad 
locations to address the G & T’s housing needs. However, it is suggested that it 
should raise the issue that the SADC Plan failed to include a target, supporting text 
to justify the identification of G & T sites within the broad locations. Further clarity is 
required on the gross/net pitches required (2020-2036) and whether potential sites 
within the proposed broad locations may result in a shortfall/ of G & T pitches.

3.23 The response should also draw attention to needs emanating from the Transit site 
in Hertsmere. The only (public) Transit site in Hertfordshire is located at South 
Mimms (within the borough of Hertsmere). This site serves the whole of 
Hertfordshire. The updated SADC GTANA should consider the role of this site, 
noting that the WHBC GTAA (2016) has made an allowance for one pitch to be 
provided in Welwyn Hatfield to address a need for accommodation arising from this 
Transit site. 

Infrastructure and Transport Strategy Policies L17 -18 

3.24 Policy L18 policy sets out a generic principles/measures to; ensure proposals reduce 
congestion; promote the use of sustainable modes of transport and deliver new or 
enhanced transport infrastructure. It indicates that specific transport schemes are 
identified in the Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP). While Policy L17 refers to an 
infrastructure delivery schedule which is included as an Appendix to the Plan. Policy 
L17 sets out a requirement for new development to make appropriate provision. 

3.25 The SADC Plan is proposing a significant level of growth at broad locations at: (1) 
East of St Albans: 1,250 dwellings, (2) West of London Conley: 440 dwellings (3) 
Park Street Garden Village: 2,300 dwellings and (4) West of Chiswell Green; which 
may impact the highway capacity/congestion along the A414 and A1057 into Hatfield. 

3.26 The Infrastructure Delivery Schedule lacks detail as to specific infrastructure 
proposals and an updated Infrastructure Delivery Plan has yet to be published. St 
Albans are part of the A414 Consortium and it is understood that the County 
Council has modelled the proposed levels of growth in the Plan but it is not clear to 
what extent provision has been made for any necessary mitigation. It is understood 
that there will be further run of the Comet model the outputs of which will be 
available in 2019.

Policy L29 Green and Blue Infrastructure, Countryside, Landscape and Trees  

3.27 The policy seeks improvement to the Green Infrastructure network and the creation 
of new green infrastructure within the broad locations. Reference is also made to 
the implementation of the Ellenbrook Country Park and the continued 
implementation of the Heartwood Forest. The diagram indicates linkages with the 
Green Corridor identified in the Welwyn Hatfield Local Plan but this is not referred to 
in the policy. It is considered that the Council’s response should ask for a 
modification to the Policy to accommodate this.

4. Legal Implication(s)

4.1. The Duty to Cooperate is a legal requirement, which is taken into account in the 
examination of Local Plans. Public bodies have a duty under the Planning and 

Page 9



- 6 -

Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, as amended by the Localism Act 2011, to cooperate 
on the preparation of planning documents so far as they relate to a strategic matter 
(the Duty to Cooperate). Strategic matters are defined as those that would have a 
significant impact on at least two planning areas. The Planning Practice Guidance 
has been updated to refer to Statements of Common Ground which should be 
produced at the start of plan making and published in order to provide transparency.

4.2. Local planning authorities that are unwilling to cooperate and unable to provide robust 
evidence to support a strategy that does not plan for the unmet requirements of 
another local planning authority may fail the test of compliance with the Duty to 
Cooperate or their plan may be found unsound .

5. Financial Implication(s)

5.1. There are no specific financial implications arising from this report. 

6 Risk Management Implications

6.1 There is a risk that in not responding to the consultation on the SADC Local Plan, it 
could have both direct and indirect implications for Welwyn Hatfield, as it raises a 
number of strategic cross boundary issues.

7 Security and Terrorism Implication(s)

7.1 There are no security and terrorism implications arising directly as a result of this 
report.

8 Procurement Implication(s)

8.1 There are no procurement implications arising directly as a result of this report.

9 Climate Change Implication(s)

9.1 No climate change implications have been identified resulting from this report. 
Although clearly proposals for more development will have an impact on climate 
change and will need to be assessed as part of the sustainability appraisal process 
accompanying the preparation of the SADC Local Plan.

10 Policy Implications

10.1 There are no direct policy implications arising for Welwyn Hatfield as a result of this 
report. However it should be noted that the proposed actions in this report support 
the Council in discharging its duties under the Localism Act (and re-stated in the 
NPPF) to engage constructively, actively and on an ongoing basis to maximize the 
effectiveness of Local Plan preparation in the context of strategic cross boundary 
matters.

11 Human Resources Implications

11.1 There are no direct implications arising from this report.

12 Health and Wellbeing Implications

12.1 There are no direct implications arising from this report.

13 Communications and Engagement Implications

Page 10

http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/blog/guidance/duty-to-cooperate/what-is-the-duty-to-cooperate-and-what-does-it-require/#paragraph_021


- 7 -

13.1 There are no direct implications arising from this report.

14 Link to Corporate Priorities

14.1 The Council’s Business Plan 2015-2018 contains corporate priorities to meet the 
borough’s housing need, help build a strong local economy, protect and enhance the 
environment and maintain a safe and healthy community. Responding to other 
authorities’ consultations helps this Council to meet these priorities effectively.

15 Equality and Diversity

15.1 I confirm that an Equalities Impact Assessment has not been carried out, as this 
report refers solely to the emerging policy and proposals of another authority.

Appendices

Appendix A Draft Response

Mohammed Azram 
Senior Policy Planner 
25th September 2018

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A

Proposed response to St. Albans Local Plan Publication 2018 consultation

1. Paragraph 1.5 Duty to Cooperate Neighbours – South West Hertfordshire

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council (WHBC) welcomes the acknowledgement within the Plan 
that there is a cross boundary relationship between the two areas. Whilst Welwyn Hatfield is 
not part of the South West Housing Market Area or FEMA there are housing and economic 
market relations which have been recognised and which are specifically identified in the 
definition of the Welwyn Hatfield Housing and Economic Market Areas. 

It is considered that the heading for this section would therefore be clearer if it simply 
referred to Duty to Cooperate Neighbours and then the various cross boundary relationships 
could be considered as they relate to different geographies.

There are a number of outstanding Duty to Cooperate issues which Welwyn Hatfield 
Borough Council would welcome the opportunity to address in either a Statement of 
Common Ground or Memorandum of Understanding prior to the submission of the St Albans 
Local Plan. It is recognised that at the current time it is impossible to be certain what the 
appropriate housing need figure for St Albans should be under the government’s standard 
methodology and therefore the appropriateness of the housing requirement and what, if any, 
potential there is to meet the unmet needs of neighbouring authorities where it is practical to 
do so and consistent with achieving sustainable development.

It is noted that a number of key pieces of evidence have yet to be completed and therefore it 
has not been possible to fully assess the proposals set out in the Regulation 19 consultation. 
The Council has therefore made a number of holding objections which it would hope to 
resolve before the submission of the St Alans Local Plan for examination.  

2. Policy S4 Housing Requirement 

WHBC welcome the inclusions of a higher housing requirement of 14,608 dwellings, or 913 
dwellings per annum (dpa) between 2020-36, within the SADC Local Plan (2018). This 
appears to be derived from the Government’s Planning for the right homes and right places 
consultation document (2017) that included a proposed standard methodology for assessing 
housing need and indicative local authority need figures, when the Plan was approved by 
your Council members. 

This will need to be reviewed in the light of the latest subnational household projections 2016 
that were published on 20/09/2018, the unmet housing needs of neighbouring authorities 
within the HMA or where a cross boundary relationship exists, whether any past under/over 
delivery of housing should be considered prior to 2020 (as the housing need evidence is 
based on 2018 data using 2016 household projections), as well as any revised standard 
methodology that the Government introduces in November.

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council has been tasked by the Welwyn Hatfield examination 
Inspector with identifying an additional 4,000 dwellings to meet the needs arising from within 
the borough and also to identify the need for housing and the supply within the defined 
housing market area. 

WHBC has currently completed further analysis to the harm to the Green Belt and is in the 
process of assessing infrastructure constraints associated with different development 
scenarios. WHBC confirm that the borough may still need assistance from SADC (who fall 

Page 13



within the tightly defined WHBC HMA), to meet some of the unmet housing needs, 
depending on the outcome of this work and the Inspector’s conclusions on sites currently 
identified in the Plan. 

At the current time it is unclear to what extent St Albans City and District Council have given 
consideration to meeting the unmet needs of neighbouring authorities and therefore whether 
the plan is sound in respect of the tests set out in Paragraph 35a of the NPPF.

3. Policy S5 Economic Development Strategy and Employment Land Provision

As the evidence base is being updated it is not clear to what extent the Plan is meeting the 
forecasts for growth and the jobs to worker ratio that will result from the policies in the Plan. 
Currently there are significant commuting flows between St Albans and Hatfield and it is 
considered this is a Duty to Cooperate issue which will need addressing once the evidence 
base is complete.

4. Policy L5 Small Scale Development in the Green Belt Settlements

Whilst infill development which comprises the openness of the Green Belt is not necessarily 
inappropriate development (paragraph 145 of the NPPF) it does have the potential to conflict 
with justification for the settlement lying within the Green Belt (paragraph 141). The Council 
should therefore consider adding an additional criterion which would protect the open 
character of the settlement which contributes to the openness of the Green Belt. This is 
particularly important where the settlement lies in a fragile gap between towns.

5. Policy L7 Gypsy, Travellers and Travelling Show People

WHBC welcomes the provision of additional Gypsy and Traveller pitches in the Plan. It is 
noted that the evidence is in the process of being updated and therefore it is unclear whether 
or not there are any Duty to Co-operate issues relating to the level of provision. The 
evidence base should take account of any need emanating from the transit site in 
Hertsmere. This site serves the whole of Hertfordshire. The WHBC GTAA (2016) has made 
an allowance for one pitch to be provided in Welwyn Hatfield as its share.

6. Infrastructure and Transport Strategy Policies L17 -18

WHBC supports the requirement to make appropriate provision for infrastructure. It is noted 
that there will be a further run of the Comet model and that the infrastructure delivery plan 
will be updated. Duty to Cooperate discussions and joint work on the A414 Corridor 
proposals and the Growth and Transport Plans will be needed to ensure that adequate 
provision is being made to accommodate growth resulting from both Local Plans.

7. Policy L29 Green and Blue Infrastructure, Countryside, Landscape and Trees  

WHBC welcomes the Green Infrastructure diagram references to green links going into 
Welwyn Hatfield and the identification of Ellenbrook Country Park. The Council consider that 
the policy would be more effective if it included a specific reference to linking Heartwood 
Forest with the Green Corridor identified in the Welwyn Hatfield Draft Local Plan. 

Page 14



1

Part I
Main author: Vikki Hatfield
Executive Member: Stephen Boulton
Handside Ward

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL – 4 OCTOBER 2018
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (RESOURCES, ENVIRONMENT AND 
CULTURAL SERVICES)

INTRODUCTION OF VERGE PROTECTION ORDER IN VARIOUS ROADS, HANDSIDE 
WARD, WGC

1 Executive Summary

1.1 The Council began consulting residents in the four areas which are described as 
Parkway A, B, C and D. The proposals included the introduction of two new 
Resident Parking Permit Schemes (RPPS) and merging two existing residents’ 
parking schemes into one. In addition, the Council’s proposals included introducing 
a Verge Protection Order (VPO) to cover verges, footways and vehicle crossovers 
(VXOs). 

1.2 A VPO covers the limits of the public highway, extending from the centre of the 
road to the highway boundary, which in many cases is the boundary of the private 
property. Yellow line waiting restrictions also share the same boundary.

1.3 The Council are receiving more and more requests to deal with people parking on 
the verge and pavements. At present, enforcement of parking on the pavement is 
the remit of the Police as this could be classed as obstruction; however this is 
regarded as a low priority for the Police due to other work pressures. Vehicles 
parking on the verge and green areas are reported through to the Council and the 
Street Warden team who will monitor and place notices on vehicles parking in such 
areas, requesting that they refrain from doing this. Without a VPO in place, there 
is not the means to effectively and robustly manage vehicles parking in these areas

1.4 The VPO which covered the four areas, was formally advertised in December 2017 
(Appendix B) and a number of objections were received in response to the 
proposals. At the July meeting of Cabinet Planning and Parking Panel (CPPP) the 
VPO report was due to be presented to the Panel for consideration. New 
information was received from Hertfordshire County Council (HCC), two days 
before the meeting, specifically relating to the VPO report. The Council needed 
time to consider this information and meet with officers at HCC. Therefore, the 
VPO report was deferred until another meeting to allow officers at Welwyn Hatfield 
Council and Hertfordshire County Council to meet up and discuss a way forward.

1.5 This report sets out the results of the informal consultation, the statutory 
consultation and the recommended course of action. A total of 258 properties and 
businesses have been consulted.  This report also outlines the amendments the 
Council are proposing and the objections which were received in response to the 
advertised VPO.

1.6 Twenty five objections have been received relating to the VPO proposals, please 
see Appendix A.

Page 15

Agenda Item 8



2

2 Recommendation(s)

2.1 That the Panel consider the objections received in 3.1.1, 3.2.4 and 3.3.7; in 
particular the issues raised in Section 15 around equalities and diversity. Having 
considered all the detailed issues in this report including any proposed mitigating 
actions; recommends to Cabinet to proceed with the creation of VPO Order as 
amended (Appendix C), for the reasons set out in this report.

2.2 That the Panel recommend to Cabinet to the principles as outlined in Section 5 
when consulting and introducing VPOs within the Borough.

3 Explanation

Parkway A 

3.1 This section of Parkway covers the area between the junctions of Stanborough   
Road and Rooks Hill, There is existing junction protection only at the junction with 
Stanborough Green. A new RPPS has been introduced commencing on 8th 
October 2018 which applies to the carriageway and includes the cul-de-sac. This 
restriction operates Monday-Saturday, 9am-5pm.

3.1.1 Parkway A - Objections

a) There is no need for a verge protection order on this specific stretch of parkway 
because of existing bollards that prevent parking on the verge.

b) The verge protection order will prevent residents from parking on the vehicle 
crossover and substantially increase on-road parking.

3.1.2 The reasons for moving forward with these amended proposals as detailed in 
Appendix C are as follows:

a) The existing oak posts were installed precisely as a result of verge parking. A verge 
protection order would enable their removal and represent a major improvement 
in the conservation area street scene.

b) There is existing off road parking for most properties. Those without any such 
provision have been included in the eligible list of properties for the cul-de-sac 
permit parking area.

3.2 Parkway B

3.2.1 This section of Parkway covers the area between the junctions of Turmore Dale 
and Barleycroft Road. A new RPPS has been introduced which includes six 
parking bays. This restriction operates Monday-Saturday, 9am-5pm.

3.2.2 Honeycroft is located in this section. This road is unusual as it doesn’t have any 
parking available upon the road itself due to its limited width. Residents are 
currently parking either within the boundary of their property or on VXOs which are 
classed as public highway. The majority of people using this road are residents 
and their visitors. Honeycroft properties are included within the RPPS on Parkway, 
so residents can purchase a permit or vouchers for any visitors. See Appendix D 
which outlines the extent of the public highway.

Page 16



3

3.2.4 Parkway B - Objections

a) Based on the parking restrictions (Verge Protection Order) you are proposing for 
Honeycroft any cars parked on the driveway in front of my garage would be illegally 
parked. We would have to seek alternative parking in nearby roads.

b) We maintain the areas of grass which are council owned. The adjoining driveways 
should also remain unaffected by your parking restrictions.

c) Most of the homes here have substantial drives for off-road parking. This is the 
main route in and out of town and parked cars cause congestion.

d) I only have space for one car. Where will all my visitors and tradespeople park, if 
not on my driveway?

3.2.5 The reasons for moving forward with these amended proposals as detailed in 
Appendix C are as follows:

a) Permit parking bays have been provided in Parkway to cater for this eventuality.
b) The Council do not have the authority to permit parking on land owned by 

Hertfordshire County Council.
c) The Police do not wish for parking to be removed from Parkway as this would 

increase vehicle speeds and the likelihood of collisions.
d) Sufficient permit parking bays have been provided for.

3.2.6 After discussion with officers at HCC, the council are amending the advertised 
proposals to remove the VPO from the VXOs in Honeycroft. The Council 
recommend to introduce the amended TRO as outlined in 
Appendix C.

3.3 Parkway C

3.3.1 This section of Parkway covers the area between the junctions of Barleycroft Road 
and Church Road, including Parkway Close. 

3.3.2 Parkway Close is a quiet cul-de-sac and the majority of people either driving or 
walking in Parkway Close are the residents and their visitors. The entrance road 
is very narrow, with a parking section on the central island which currently 
accommodates up to 16 vehicles. Parkway Close is an iconic area within Welwyn 
Garden City and is visited from people all around the world to see an example of 
Ebenezer Howard’s Garden City ethos.

3.3.3 Residents have been parking on extended vehicle crossovers and an additional 
three informal parking areas have been created by adapting pedestrian footways 
to accommodate vehicles. The proposed VPO would cover the grassed areas 
around the carriageway, including the pedestrian footways and VXOs.

3.3.4 During the initial consultation Parkway Close residents were of the opinion that 
they should be allowed to continue parking on the four formal and three informal 
VXOs. These areas are public highway, please see Appendix D for the boundary 
plans.

3.3.5 After discussion with officers at HCC, the council are amending the advertised 
proposals to remove four formal VXOs in Parkway Close from the VPO. The 
Council recommend to introduce the amended TRO as outlined in 
Appendix C.

Page 17



4

3.3.6 The three informal VXOs which are actually modified pedestrian footways are not 
considered to be a valid parking space and it is intended to return them to their 
natural state. Residents will receive notification from Hertfordshire County Council 
on the timescales for this to happen.

3.3.7 Parkway C - Objections

a) I have never witness verge parking in Parkway. Money would be better spent in 
encouraging new business to the town.

b) If Parkway Close residents are not going to be allowed to park on their hard 
standings, we (Parkway North residents) should all be re-zoned A04

c) My own household contains an elderly and disabled person, and we would feel 
particularly discriminated against.

d) When Zone A03 was created my husband applied for a permit to park on a 
crossover and this was granted without objection. Why did the Council take our 
money and issue a permit?

e) The area shown in the map of the current zone was drawn as it is, specifically in 
order to include the areas of hard standing within the permit zone.

f) What works in another road with a completely different set up should not be seen 
as a one size fits all.

g) My husband is disabled and a blue badge holder. The provision of an advisory 
disabled bay will not guarantee that I can park close to my house as in fact anyone 
can use it. Your lack of consultation shows a lack of consideration for the Equalities 
Act 2010 and impinges on our rights.

3.3.8 The reasons for moving forward with these amended proposals as detailed in 
Appendix C are as follows:

a) Verge parking has increased in Parkway, even more so with the advent of on-line 
shopping.

b) Additional permit parking areas have been provided for residents where displaced 
parking has been identified.

c) The vehicle crossovers in Parkway Close will now form part of permit parking Zone 
A03, therefore allowing residents to park in these areas without penalty.

d) At the time of issue, the Council were of the opinion that permit holders would park 
in the centre island, and not on vehicle crossovers and pedestrian walkways.

e) The hard standings referred to in this case are in fact pedestrian walkways which 
have been modified by residents to accommodate vehicle parking.

f) The Council understands that many roads have unique factors. Both Welwyn 
Hatfield Council and Hertfordshire County Council have recognised this point in 
arriving at their decisions to exempt the vehicle crossovers in Parkway Close from 
the verge protection proposals.

g) There is nothing under the Equalities Act 2010 that confers upon a person the right 
to park upon a pedestrian walkway. The Council have taken steps to provide an 
advisory disabled parking pay directly opposite the affected residence.

3.4 No objections were received relating to VPO area within Parkway D. Therefore 
the Council are proposing to proceed as advertised in December 2017. Please 
see Appendix B

Page 18



5

3.5 Traffic Regulation Order

3.5.1 On the 20th December 2017 the public notice proposing “The Borough of Welwyn 
Hatfield (Various Roads, Handside, Welwyn Garden City) (Prohibition of 
Stopping and Waiting on Verge or Footway) Order 2017 was advertised in the 
Welwyn Hatfield Times. Notices were also erected in the lengths of roads affected. 
Please see Appendix B.

3.5.2 The closing date for formal objections was 31st January 2018. However, the 
Council must consider any objections which are received until the objections have 
been considered. Please see Appendix A for all objections received and for which 
area they relate too.

3.5.3 The Council are able to amend any order without the need to re-advertise as long 
as this becomes less restrictive. Therefore, by removing the described sections 
(Parkway Close and Honeycroft VXOs) from the VPO, this constitutes as making 
the order less restrictive.

3.5.4 If the Panel recommendation is to proceed with the proposed amended order and 
is subsequently ratified by the Cabinet, the following process will take place.  The 
verge protection order will be sealed and proceed to implementation. Residents 
will be notified of the commencement date which will also be advertised in the local 
press. The new permit parking areas will be added to the relevant resident parking 
permit zones, Parkway Close A03 and Honeycroft A10. As this represents an 
additional restriction, the existing Order will be re-advertised and the formal 
consultation process carried out once more. Any objections received to these 
proposals will be considered at a future meeting of this Panel.

4 A way forward for future VPO consultations

4.1 Both the Borough and County authorities have consulted on this matter and now 
issue the following advice:

 In going forward, each location will be examined independently;
 The general rule, will be that vehicle crossovers which do not lead directly to a 

footway will be exempt from a verge protection order as it is considered that 
vehicles parking on such would not be causing any obstruction;

 Conversely, where there is sufficient width to park on the road, vehicles parked on 
crossovers leading directly to a footway will be held to be causing an obstruction 
by blocking the dropped kerb access to the footway. 

 If the VXO are not included in a VPO, and they are within a resident parking permit 
zone, as they are still public highway the resident would be required to purchase 
permits and vouchers for use during the days and time the restriction is 
operational.

5 Legal Implication(s)

5.1 TROs are created under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984. Consultations 
follow a statutory legal process as set out in The Local Authorities' Traffic Orders 
(Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996. No other legal implications 
are inherent in relation in to the proposals in this report.

Page 19



6

6 Financial Implication(s)

6.1 The cost of TRO works recommended in this report will be funded through existing 
Parking Services revenue and capital budgets.

It is standard procedure to monitor new parking restrictions for the first 6 months 
after they are implemented. During this period all reports of safety issues or parking 
displacement will be recorded. If any significant safety issues are discovered 
during the monitoring period, Parking Services will investigate and carry out the 
appropriate remedial action.

7 Risk Management Implications

7.1 Changing the parking conditions in the above mentioned roads could generate 
negative publicity. Some parking may be displaced into nearby roads. 

7.2 It is standard procedure to monitor new parking restrictions for the first 6 months 
after they are implemented. During this period all reports of safety issues or parking 
displacement will be recorded. If any significant safety issues are discovered 
during the monitoring period, Parking Services where possible will investigate and 
carryout the appropriate remedial action.

8 Security & Terrorism Implications

8.1 There are no known security & terrorism implications inherent in relation to the 
proposals in this report.

9 Human Resources

9.1 There are no known Human Resources implications in relation to the proposals in 
this report.

10 Communication and Engagement

10.1 When making any changes to parking restrictions there is a statutory consultation 
process which the Council needs to adhere too. This includes consulting directly 
with all affected parties and a number of statutory consultees, such as the Police 
and Hertfordshire County Council. 

10.2 In addition, Notices needs to be erected within all roads affected and advertised in 
the local newspaper, in this case the Welwyn Hatfield Times.

This process has been carried out and there are no known implications in relation 
to the proposals in this report.

11 Health and Wellbeing

11.1 There are no known Health and Wellbeing implications in relation to the proposals 
in this report

12 Procurement Implications

12.1 There are no known procurement implications in relation to the proposals in this 
report.

Page 20



7

13 Climate Change Implication(s)

13.1 There are no known climate change implications in relation to the proposals in this 
report.

14  Link to Corporate Priorities

14.1 This report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority Protect and Enhance the 
Environment, and specifically to the achievement to Deliver Effective Parking 
Services

 Protect and enhance the environment and deliver effective parking 
services;

 Engage with our communities and provide value for money

15 Equality and Diversity

15.1 I confirm that an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has been carried out. 

15.2 The EqIA found that there is potential for negative impacts on Disability. There is 
an inbuilt exemption to the Verge Protection Order which allows for the unloading 
and loading of goods and passengers.

Name of author Vikki Hatfield 01707 357555
Title Parking and Cemetery Services Manager
Date 25 September 2018

Background papers to be listed (if applicable)  

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



PARKWAY 

A 

Appendix A

Page 23



Page 24



PARKWAY A

Page 25



PARKWAY A

Page 26



PARKWAY A

Page 27



PARKWAY A

Page 28



PARKWAY A

Page 29



PARKWAY A

Page 30



 

PARKWAY  

B 

Page 31



Page 32



PARKWAY B

Page 33



PARKWAY B

Page 34



PARKWAY B

Page 35



PARKWAY B

Page 36



PARKWAY B

Page 37



PARKWAY B

Page 38



 

PARKWAY  

C 

Page 39



Page 40



PARKWAY C

Page 41



PARKWAY C

Page 42



PARKWAY C

Page 43



PARKWAY C

Page 44



PARKWAY C

Page 45



PARKWAY C

Page 46



PARKWAY C

Page 47



PARKWAY C

Page 48



PARKWAY C

Page 49



PARKWAY C

Page 50



PARKWAY C

Page 51



PARKWAY C

Page 52



PARKWAY C

Page 53



PARKWAY C

Page 54



PARKWAY C

Page 55



PARKWAY C

Page 56



PARKWAY C

Page 57



PARKWAY C

Page 58



PARKWAY C

Page 59



PARKWAY C

Page 60



PARKWAY C

Page 61



PARKWAY C

Page 62



PARKWAY C

Page 63



PARKWAY C

Page 64



PARKWAY C

Page 65



PARKWAY C

Page 66



PARKWAY C

Page 67



PARKWAY C

Page 68



PARKWAY C

Page 69



PARKWAY C

Page 70



PARKWAY C

Page 71



PARKWAY C

Page 72



PARKWAY C

Page 73



PARKWAY C

Page 74



PARKWAY C

Page 75



PARKWAY C

Page 76



PARKWAY C

Page 77



PARKWAY C

Page 78



WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 

THE BOROUGH OF WELWYN HATFIELD (VARIOUS ROADS, WELWYN GARDEN CITY) 
(RESTRICTION OF WAITING AND PERMIT PARKING ZONES) ORDER 2017 

THE BOROUGH OF WELWYN HATFIELD (VARIOUS ROADS, HANDSIDE, WELWYN 
GARDEN CITY) (PROHIBITION OF STOPPING AND WAITING ON VERGE OR 

FOOTWAY) ORDER 2017 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council (pursuant to 
arrangement made with Hertfordshire County Council) in order to improve road safety 
proposes to make the above Orders under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 to introduce 
restrictions in various roads, Welwyn Garden City as specified in the Schedule(s) to this 
Notice. 

Full details of the proposals are contained in the draft Orders, the plans and the statements 
of reasons which may be inspected during normal office hours at the offices of Welwyn 
Hatfield Borough Council, The Campus,Welwyn Garden City or viewed at 
www.welhat.gov.uk from 20th December 2017 

General enquiries relating to the proposals should be referred to Mr Jack Carson, Parking 
Services, Council Offices, Welwyn Garden City, AL8 6AE (01707 357000); email contact-
parking@welhat.gov.uk 

Objections to the proposals should be made in writing to Ka Ng, Council Offices, The 
Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts, AL8 6AE by 31st January 2018, stating the grounds on 
which they are made.  

SCHEDULE 1: No waiting at any time - those sections of roads listed below as set out 
in the Order and accompanying plans  

Parts of Parkway, Fordwich Road, Honeycroft, Fearnley Road, Parkway Close and Longcroft 
Green 

SCHEDULE 2: No waiting, Monday to Saturday, 8am to 6pm, those sections of roads 
listed below as set out in the Order and accompanying plans 

Parts of Parkway and Longcroft Green. 

SCHEDULE 3: No waiting, Monday to Saturday, 9am to 11am. Those sections of roads 
listed below as set out in the Order and accompanying plans 

Parts of Parkway  

SCHEDULE 4: Permit Parking Places, Zone A 03, Monday to Saturday, 8am to 6pm, 
those sections of roads listed below as set out in the Order and accompanying plans 

Parts of Parkway Close and Parkway 

SCHEDULE 5: Permit Parking Places, Zone A 10, Monday to Saturday, 9am to 5pm, 
those sections of roads listed below as set out in the Order and accompanying plans 

Appendix B

Page 79



Parts of Parkway 

SCHEDULE 6: Permit Parking Places, Zone A 11, Monday to Saturday, 9am to 5pm, 
those sections of roads listed below as set out in the Order and accompanying plans 

Parts of Parkway 

SCHEDULE 7: Parking Zone 

Parking Zone Name PZ Code Eligible addresses 

Parkway A 03 Even Nos 50, 52, 54, 56, 58, 60, 62, 64, 66, 68, 70 72, 
74, 76, 78, 80, 82, 84, 86, 88, 90, 92, 94, 96, 98, 100, 
102 and 104. 

Parkway Close A 03 Nos 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11 and 12 

Parking Zone Name PZ Code Eligible addresses 

Parkway A 10 Odd Nos 101, 103, 105, 107, 109, 111, 113, 115, 133, 
135, 137, 139, 141, 143, 145, 147, 149, 151, and 153. 
Even Nos 112, 114, 116, 118, 120, 122, 124, 126, 128, 
130, 132, 134, 136, 138, 140, 142, 144, 146, 148, and 
150 

Honeycroft A 10 Nos 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, and 8 

Parking Zone Name PZ Code Eligible addresses 

Parkway A 11 Nos 169, 173, 175, 181, 183, 185, 187 and 189 

Stanborough Road A 11 No 22 

SCHEDULE 8: Allocation of Parking Permits and Parking Vouchers 

Permit Type Limit 

Resident Permit No limit 

Resident Permit for 
motorcycle 

No limit 

Business Permit 1 permit with a maximum of 2 vehicle registration 
numbers 

Visitor Voucher Minimum purchase of 20 Daily Vouchers 
Maximum purchase 240 days per year. 

Doctors/Health Visitor Permit Allocated at Council’s discretion 

Special Permit Allocated at Council’s discretion 

SCHEDULE 9: Charges for Parking Permits and Parking Vouchers* 

Application Type Charges 

Resident Permit for disabled driver First permit Free 

Resident Permit for motorcycle £10 per annum 

Resident Permit for first car £25 per annum 

Resident Permit for second car £40 per annum 

Resident permit for third or subsequent cars £60 per annum 

Business permit £225 per annum 

Visitor Voucher 50p per day or 25p per day to residents 
receiving state pension. 

Doctors/Health Visitor Permit £20 per annum 

Special Permit Charged at council’s discretion 

Administration Type Charges 

Refund Parking Permit and Vouchers £5 Paper permits and vouchers only 

Page 80



Duplicate/replacement Parking Permit £5 

Duplicate/replacement Parking Voucher £5 whole books of paper vouchers only 

*The charges may be amended by the Local Authority giving notice in accordance with
section 46A of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984. 

SCHEDULE 10: Refunds 

Permit Type Refund 

Resident permit for motorcycle Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 

Resident permit for first car Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 

Resident permit for second car Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 

Resident permit for third or 
subsequent cars 

Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 

Business permit Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 

Visitor Voucher Cost of whole books only 

Doctors/Health Visitor Permit Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 

Special Permit Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 

SCHEDULE 11: No Stopping or Waiting at any time on any verge, vehicle crossover or 
footway 

In parts of Parkway, Honeycroft, Parkway Gardens, Longcroft Green, The Cloisters, Church 
Road, Parkway Close and Russellcroft Road, Welwyn Garden City. 

Ka Ng, Executive Director, Resources, Environment and Cultural Services, 
Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts AL8 6AE 
15th December 2017. 

Page 81



WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 

STATEMENT OF REASONS FOR PROPOSING 

THE BOROUGH OF WELWYN HATFIELD (VARIOUS ROADS, HANDSIDE, WELWYN 
GARDEN CITY) (PROHIBITION OF STOPPING AND WAITING ON VERGE OR 

FOOTWAY) ORDER 2017 

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council is proposing to introduce restrictions in parts of Parkway, 
Honeycroft, Parkway Gardens, Longcroft Green, The Cloisters, Church Road, Parkway 
Close and Russellcroft Road, Welwyn Garden City consisting of a prohibition of stopping and 
waiting on any verge, vehicle crossover and footway.  

Due to problems associated with unnecessary obstruction, blocked sightlines and damage 
being caused by vehicle parking on verges, vehicle crossovers and footways in the 
Handside conservation area; consultation has taken place with the residents in the above 
named roads. The results of the consultation showed that a clear majority were in favour of 
the proposed restriction.  

Existing bye laws in force prohibit parking on grass verges, however current legislation does 
not allow their enforcement by parking attendants. 

Having considered the duty imposed by Section 122 Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, it 
appears to Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council that it is necessary and expedient to make 
Orders for the following reasons:- 

 For the avoidance of danger to persons or other traffic using the road and
preventing the likelihood of any such danger arising.

 For preventing the use of the road by vehicular traffic in a manner which, is
unsuitable having regard to the existing character of the road or adjoining
property

The proposed new restrictions are as follows;  

In parts of Parkway, Honeycroft, Parkway Gardens, Longcroft Green, The Cloisters, Church 
Road, Parkway Close and Russellcroft Road, Welwyn Garden City 

1. No stopping or waiting at any time on any verge, vehicle crossover or footway

Consultation has been carried out with local residents, Hertfordshire County Council, 
Hertfordshire Constabulary, Fire and Ambulance Services and local Councillors representing 
the area.  

Ka Ng, Executive Director, Resources, Environment and Cultural Services 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council  
Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts AL8 6AE  
15th December 2017 

Page 82



Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 

ROAD TRAFFIC REGULATION ACT 1984 

THE BOROUGH OF WELWYN HATFIELD 
(VARIOUS ROADS, HANDSIDE, WELWYN GARDEN CITY) (PROHIBITION OF 

STOPPING AND WAITING ON VERGE OR FOOTWAY) ORDER 2017 

The Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council (hereinafter referred to as "the Council") pursuant to 
arrangements made with Hertfordshire County Council (“the County Council”) under Section 19 
Local Government Act 2000 and The Local Authorities (Arrangements for the Discharge of 
Functions) (England) Regulations 2012 in exercise of the powers of the said County Council under 
Sections 1(1), 2(1) to (3), 3(2), 4(1) and 4(2) of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 (herein 
referred to as “the Act of 1984”) and Part IV of Schedule 9 of the Act of 1984 and of all other 
enabling powers, and after consultation with the Chief Officer of Police in accordance with 
Paragraph 20 of Schedule 9 to the Act of 1984, hereby makes the following Order:- 

1. (a) This Order shall come into operation on XXXXXXXXX and may be cited as "The
Borough of Welwyn Hatfield (Various Roads, Handside, Welwyn Garden City)
(Prohibition of Stopping and Waiting on Footway or Verge) Order 2017
hereinafter referred to as ‘this Order’

(b) The Borough of Welwyn Hatfield (Various Roads, Handside, Welwyn Garden City)
(Prohibition of Stopping and Waiting on Footway or Verge) Order Plan –
JC/VPO/001/002/2018 (hereinafter referred to as the “accompanying plan”) is
incorporated into this Order.

2. (1) In this Order, except where the context otherwise requires, the following expressions
have the meanings hereby respectively assigned to them:-

“the Act of 1984” means the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984;

“the Council” means Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council;

“accompanying plan” means the plan JC/VPO/001/002/2018 as incorporated into The
Borough of Welwyn Hatfield (Various Roads, Handside, Welwyn Garden City) (Prohibition
of Stopping and Waiting on Verges and Footways) Order 2017.

“carriageway” has the same meaning as in Section 329 of the Highways Act 1980, but does
not include lay-bys;

“driver”, in relation to a vehicle waiting in a parking place, means the person driving the
vehicle at the time it was left in the parking place;

"footway" has the same meaning as in Section 329 of the Highways Act 1980;

“legally qualified medical practitioner” has the same meaning as ‘fully registered medical
practitioner’ in the Medical Act 1983;

“medical practitioner” has the same meaning as ‘legally qualified medical practitioner’;

Appendix C

Page 85



2 
 

“parking attendant” has the same meaning as in Section 63A of the Road Traffic Regulation 
Act 1984 and by virtue of Section 76 Traffic Management Act 2004, a parking attendant 
appointed under Section 63A of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 is a civil enforcement 
officer in relation to parking contraventions; 
 
“provision of a universal postal service”, “universal service provider” and “postal packet” 
shall bear the same meanings as in section 65 of the Postal services Act 2011; 
 
“road” means the full width – including any footway or verge – of any length of highway or of 
any other road to which the public has access, and includes bridges over which a road 
passes; 
 
“traffic sign” means a sign of any size, colour and type prescribed or authorised under, or 
having effect as though prescribed or authorised under section 64 of the Act of 1984; 
 
“vehicle crossover” means a metalled surface constructed specifically as a means of 
access across a verge from the carriageway of a road, to a private driveway or private 
parking place; 
 
"verge" means any land forming part of the road which is neither carriageway nor footway. 

 
 
            (2)    In this Order, except where the context otherwise requires:- 
 

(a) Any reference to a numbered article or a numbered Schedule is a reference to the 
Article or Schedule bearing that number in this Order; 

(b) Any reference to a numbered or lettered paragraph or sub-paragraph is a reference to 
the paragraph or sub-paragraph bearing that number or letter in the Article or Schedule 
or (in the case of a sub-paragraph) paragraph in which the reference occurs; and 

(c) Any reference to a Table, or to a numbered Table, is a reference to the Table, or to the 
Table bearing that number, in the Article or Schedule in which that reference occurs. 

 
(3)  Any reference in this Order to any enactment shall be construed as a reference to       
that enactment as amended by any subsequent enactment; 
 
(4)  The restrictions imposed by this Order shall be in addition to and not in derogation of 
any restriction or requirement imposed by any regulations made under or having effect as if 
made under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, or by or under any other enactment; 
 
(5)  The Interpretation Act 1978 shall apply for the interpretation of this Order as it applies 
for the interpretation of an Act of Parliament. 

 
 

3. Save as provided in Articles 4, 5 and 6 of this Order no person shall, except upon the 
direction of, or with the permission of a Police Constable in uniform, or with the permission 
of a parking attendant, cause or permit any vehicle to stop or wait at any time with two or 
more wheels on any part of the verge, vehicle crossover or footway, where stopping and 
waiting is prohibited as shown in the “accompanying plan” and indicated in the key to that 
plan and as listed in the Schedule to this Order.  
 

 
4. (1) Nothing in Article 3 of this Order applies to the lengths of road restricted by that Article 

(which said lengths of road are referred to in this Article as "the restricted area") in relation 
to - 

 

Page 86



3 
 

(a) A vehicle being used for Fire and Rescue, Ambulance or Police purposes; if the 
observance of that provision would be likely to hinder the use of that vehicle for the 
purpose for which is being used on that occasion 

(b) a vehicle which is prevented from proceeding by circumstances beyond the driver’s 
control or which has stopped in order to avoid injury or damage to persons or property 
or when required to do so by law; 

(c) a vehicle which is stationary in order that it may be used for one or more of the 
purposes specified in sub-Article (2) of this Article and which cannot reasonably be 
used for such a purpose without stopping in the restricted area; 

(d) a marked vehicle which, whilst used by a universal service provider in the course of the 
provision of a universal postal service, is stationary only for so long as may be 
reasonably necessary for postal packets to be delivered or collected. 
 

 
 (2) The "purposes" referred to in sub-Article (1) (c) of this Article are - 

 
a) any operation involving building, demolition or excavation; 

 
b) the removal of any obstruction to traffic; 

 
c) the maintenance, upgrading, improvement to, or reconstruction of a road; 

 
d)  construction, improving, maintaining, or cleaning of any street furniture; or 

 
e) the laying, erection, alteration, repair or cleaning of any sewer or of any main pipe or 
apparatus for the supply of gas, water or electricity, or of any telecommunications 
apparatus kept or installed for the purposes of a telecommunications code system or of 
any other telecommunications apparatus lawfully kept installed in any position. 

 
5.  Nothing in Article 3 of this Order applies to lengths of road restricted by that Article (which 

said lengths of road are referred to in this Article as “the restricted area”) so as to render it 
unlawful  to cause or permit a vehicle to stop or wait on any vehicle crossover for so long as 
may be necessary -  
 
(a) To enable goods to be loaded on or unloaded from the vehicle from or to premises 

adjacent to the restricted area; or 
 

(b) To enable a passenger to board or alight and to load and unload any luggage. 
 
(c) To enable a medical practitioner, or to enable a Midwife, a District Nurse or a health 

Visitor registered with the Nursing and Midwifery Council or a carer to make a house 
call on a patient; 

 
(d) To enable the vehicle to be used in connection with the removal of furniture from one 

office or dwelling house to another, or the removal of furniture from such premises to a 
depository or to such premises from a depository; 

 
(e) a marked vehicle which, whilst used by a universal service provider in the course of the 

provision of a universal postal service, is stationary only for so long as may be 
reasonably necessary for postal packets to be delivered or collected. 

 
 

6. (1) Nothing in Article 3 of this Order shall render it unlawful to cause or permit a 
     disabled person’s vehicle which displays in the relevant position a disabled 

Page 87



4 
 

person’s badge to stop or wait any time on a vehicle crossover where stopping and 
waiting is prohibited as shown in the “accompanying plan” to this Order and identified in 
the key to that plan as no stopping or waiting, for a period not exceeding 3 hours (not 
being a period separated by an interval of less than 1 hour from a previous period of 
stopping or waiting by the same vehicle on the same vehicle crossover 

 
             (2) In this Article –  

 
  “disabled person’s vehicle” has the same meaning as in Section 142 (1) of the  
  Act of 1984; 
 
  “disabled person’s badge” has the same meaning as given in Regulation 3(1) of The  
  Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Exemptions for Disabled Persons) (England)   
  Regulations 2000 
  “parking disc” has the same meaning as given in Regulation 8 (5) of The Local 
  Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Exemptions for Disabled Persons) (England)  
  Regulations 2000; and  
 
  “relevant position” has the same meaning as given in Regulation 4 of The Local  
  Authorities Traffic Orders (Exemptions for Disabled persons) (England) Regulations  
  2000. 

 
7. (1) Where a person contravenes any of the restrictions set out in the provisions of this 

Order, or a vehicle is left on any verge, vehicle crossover, or footway, otherwise than in 
accordance with the provisions of this Order, the Owner of the Vehicle in question shall 
incur a penalty charge. 
 
(2) That charge shall be payable to Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council in accordance with 
the instructions contained on the Penalty Charge Notice. 

 
8. The provisions of the following Order is hereby revoked but only in so far as they are affected 

by the restrictions imposed by this Order and the relevant Schedule – 
 

The Borough of Welwyn Hatfield (Control of Parking) (Consolidation) Order 2017 
 

 
SCHEDULE 

No Stopping or Waiting at any time on verge or footway 
 

Plan Number JC/VPO/001/002/2018 
 

  
  
Given under the Common Seal of the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council this 
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX 2018 
 
THE COMMON SEAL of the WELWYN ) 
HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL         ) 
was hereunto affixed in the presence of: -) 
 
 
Mayor :                                                            Authorised Officer : 
 
 

Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



N

Scale  before copying 

Vicarage

Track

86.9m

Statue

88.1m

65

BM 86.76m

69

81

nt
ur

e
 C

hu
rc

h

Presbytery

Vicarage

51

55

LA
NE

FIE
LD

W
AL

K 17 to 22

87

95

El Sub Sta

Hall

1 
to

 1
5

67

75

77

85

57

65
12

76

66

56

ROAD

GUESSENS

PARKWAY CLOSE

86

78

1

7

PA
RK

W
AY

Allotment
Gardens

12

Pl
ay

gr
ou

nd

1

17

4

10
4

96

PA
RK

W
AY

Track

LB

Mas
t

For reference purposes 
only. No further copies 
to be made.

1:1250

Parkway Close, Welwyn Garden City

Produced using ArcView by
Hertfordshire County Council

Highway Boundaries and Land Charges
9 February 2012

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material
with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of

the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright

and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Hertfordshire County Council, 100019606 ,2012

Appendix D

Page 91



N

Scale  at A4

For reference purposes only.  No further copies to be made.

1:1250

Christian Science Churc

 

 

FEARNLEY ROAD
153

 

HONEYCROFT

2

13
6

2

3

12

14

31

4a

12
6

1

85.0m

13
8

FORDWICH ROAD

1

5

21

1

11

1

1
6

13
5

150

29

2

12
4

5a

24

15
2

8

14
3

4

84.4m

PA
RK

W
AY

4

13
3

1

© Crown copyright and database rights 2014 Ordnance Survey 100019606.
Use of this data is subject to terms and conditions.

You are not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this data to third parties in any form.
(This restriction may not apply to HCC and its licenced contractors agents and partners.)

Honeycroft, Welwyn Garden City

Produced using ArcView by
Highway Boundaries & Land Charges
6  May 2014

 

Page 92


	Agenda
	7 ST ALBANS CITY AND DISTRICT LOCAL PLAN PUBLICATION DRAFT CONSULTATION DOCUMENT, SEPTEMBER 2018
	Appendix A response to SADC

	8 INTRODUCTION OF VERGE PROTECTION ORDER IN VARIOUS ROADS, HANDSIDE WARD, WELWYN GARDEN CITY
	Appendix A - CPPP - 4.10.18
	Logan - Redacted - 31.1.18
	Newman - Redacted - 30.1.18
	Goldsmith - Redacted - 23.1.18
	Cook - Formal objection - Redacted
	Bearman - redacted - 15.1.18
	Sargant - Redacted - 1.2.18
	Croton - Redacted
	Won Min - redacted - 29.1.18
	Hasnip - Redacted - 29.1.18
	Ludlow - Redacted - 29.1.18
	Towler - Redacted - 31.1.18
	Lansdell - Formal objection Redacted
	Slark - Redacted - 29.1.18
	Busse - Redacted - 19.1.18
	Press - Redacted - 29.1.18
	Barcroft - Redacted2 - 1.2.18
	Morgan - Redacted - 29.1.18
	Grammer - Redacted - 30.1.18
	Weston - redacted - 9.1.18
	Bloom2 - Redacted - 29.1.18
	Shepley - Redacted - 29.1.18
	Gismondi - Redacted - 29.1.18
	Holden - Redacted - 29.1.18
	Souter - Redacted2 - 1.2.18
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Appendix B - CPPP - 12.7.18
	Parkway Combined NOI - 14.12.17.pdf
	Verge Protection SOR - 14.12.17
	Parkway SOR - 14.12.17
	Parkway A - Final - 14.12.17
	Parkway B - Final - 14.12.17
	Parkway C - Final - 14.12.17
	Parkway D - Final - 14.12.17
	Longcroft Green - Final - 14.12.17
	Handside Parkway VP A3P - 14.12.17

	Appendix C - Amended TRO
	Appendix D - Boundary Plans




